

Senate Calendar

THURSDAY, APRIL 15, 2010

SENATE CONVENES AT: 1:00 P.M.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.

ACTION CALENDAR

CONSIDERATION POSTPONED TO APRIL 15, 2010

Third Reading

H. 524 Interference with or cruelty to a guide dog 1227

Second Reading

Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

S.R. 17 Waivers to 21-year old minimum drinking age..... 1227

Senator Miller amendment 1227

NEW BUSINESS

Third Reading

H. 408 Improving nutrition programs 1228

H. 773 Approval of amendments to the charter of the city of Burlington .. 1228

Second Reading

Favorable

H. 527 Municipal recovery of costs of fire department response 1228

H. 680 Termination of occupancy of farm employee housing..... 1228

House Proposal of Amendment

S. 272 Human trafficking 1229

NOTICE CALENDAR

Favorable

Second Reading

H. 771 Approval of amendments to the charter of the town of Stowe..... 1232

Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

H. 213 Fairness to tenants in cases of contested housing security deposit withholding..... 1233
H. 759 Executive branch fees..... 1233

House Proposal of Amendment

S. 264 Stop and hauling charges..... 1244

ORDERED TO LIE

S. 99 Amending the Act 250 criteria relating to traffic, scattered development, and rural growth areas 1244
S. 110 Sheltering livestock 1244
S. 226 Medical marijuana dispensaries 1244
H. 331 Technical changes to the records management authority of the Vermont State Archives and Records Administration..... 1244

ORDERS OF THE DAY

ACTION CALENDAR

CONSIDERATION POSTPONED TO APRIL 15, 2010

Third Reading

H. 524.

An act relating to interference with or cruelty to a guide dog.

Second Reading

Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

S.R. 17.

Senate resolution urging Congress to authorize alternative waivers to the 21-year-old minimum drinking age that do not entail federal highway funding penalties for states.

PENDING QUESTION: Shall the resolution be amended as recommended by the Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs?.

(For text, see Senate Journal of April 7, 2010, page 467).

**AMENDMENT TO S.R. 17 TO BE OFFERED BY SENATOR MILLER
ON BEHALF OF THE COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT, HOUSING, AND GENERAL AFFAIRS**

Senator Miller, on behalf of the Committee on Senate Economic Development, Housing, and General Affairs, moves to amend Senate Resolution S.R. 17 entitled "Senate resolution related to underage drinking" by striking out all after the title and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Whereas, in some instances, Congress imposes funding penalties on states that effectively create federal mandates not provided for in the 21st Amendment to the United States Constitution, and

Whereas, federal funding penalties prevent an open public debate about the effects of the drinking age as it affects unlawful, unsupervised consumption of alcohol, and

Whereas, given the constitutional authority of states to regulate alcohol within their borders, Congress should work with the states to find solutions to address the growing problem of unsupervised, underage consumption and overconsumption of alcohol, and

Whereas, each state has unique qualities and residents that make a one-size-fits-all solution difficult and each state should have the opportunity to

develop a comprehensive program that addresses its unique situation, *now therefore be it*

Resolved by the Senate:

That the Senate of the State of Vermont urges Congress to authorize the states to address the problems associated with underage consumption of alcohol by obtaining waivers from federal law to avoid triggering federal funding penalties, *and be it further*

Resolved: That the Secretary of the Senate be directed to send a copy of this resolution to the Vermont Congressional Delegation, and be it further

Resolved: That the title of the resolution be amended to read: "Senate resolution relating to problems associated with underage consumption of alcohol."

NEW BUSINESS

Third Reading

H. 408.

An act relating to improving nutrition programs.

H. 773.

An act relating to approval of amendments to the charter of the city of Burlington.

Second Reading

Favorable

H. 527.

An act relating to municipal recovery of costs of fire department response.

Reported favorably by Senator Ayer for the Committee on Government Operations.

(Committee vote: 4-0-1)

(For House amendments, see House Journal of March 25, 2010, page 663.)

H. 680.

An act relating to termination of occupancy of farm employee housing.

Reported favorably by Senator Kittell for the Committee on Agriculture.

(Committee vote: 3-0-2)

(For House amendments, see House Journal of March 17, 2010, page 441.)

House Proposal of Amendment

S. 272

An act relating to human trafficking.

The House proposes to the Senate to amend the bill by striking all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. FINDINGS

The general assembly finds that:

(1) According to his book, The Slave Next Door: Human Trafficking and Slavery in America Today, Dr. Kevin Bales states that the number of human beings estimated to be enslaved today has reached over 27 million worldwide, the highest in recorded history. Vermont and all of its bordering states have seen elements of human trafficking, yet Vermont is the only remaining state in the Northeast and one of the remaining five in the nation lacking legislation on this issue. Vermont's geographical location bordering Canada makes it susceptible to human trafficking activity.

(2) Human trafficking is an interrelated, under-reported crime that is intentionally kept secret by the traffickers who profit by billions of dollars from these crimes. Human trafficking is the third most profitable illegal global enterprise after drug and weapon trafficking, all of which have been found to be closely related.

(3) Because Vermont has a limited level of awareness regarding the existence of human trafficking within its own borders, the collaborative efforts of a human trafficking task force are necessary to raise public awareness and to recommend measures that will assist victims of human trafficking.

Sec. 2. HUMAN TRAFFICKING TASK FORCE

(a) As used in this section, "human trafficking" shall have the same meaning as in 18 U.S.C. §§ 1589–1592.

(b) For purposes of the definition of "human trafficking," "forced labor" means providing or obtaining the labor or services of a person:

(1) by threats of serious harm to, or physical restraint against, that person or another person;

(2) by means of any scheme, plan, or pattern intended to cause the person to believe that if the person did not perform such labor or services, that person or another person would suffer serious harm or physical restraint; or

(3) by means of the abuse or threatened abuse of law or the legal process.

(c) The human trafficking task force is established for the purpose of raising public awareness about human trafficking within the state and across state and international borders, identifying resources for the victims of human trafficking, recommending to the public ways to identify and report acts of human trafficking and reporting, and making findings and recommendations regarding those efforts to the general assembly.

(d) The human trafficking task force shall be composed of the following members:

(1) the attorney general or his or her designee, who shall serve as chair;

(2) a representative of the law enforcement community, appointed by the commissioner of public safety;

(3) a representative of Vermont's emergency housing or shelter community;

(4) representatives, appointed by the governor, from each of the following:

(A) the Vermont state housing authority;

(B) the department of labor;

(C) the department of education;

(D) the department for children and families;

(E) the business community; and

(F) the agency of agriculture, food and markets.

(5) a representative, appointed by the secretary, from the agency of human services who specializes in refugee matters;

(6) a representative of the coalition of Vermonters against slavery today;

(7) a representative of the Vermont farm bureau;

(8) a representative of the Vermont network against domestic and sexual violence;

(9) a representative of the Vermont coalition of runaway and homeless youth programs;

(10) a representative of the Vermont crime victim's services; and

(11) an immigration attorney, appointed by the Vermont bar association.

(e) The task force shall consult with representatives from the following:

(1) the human rights commission;

(2) the department of public safety;

- (3) the polaris project;
- (4) health care professionals;
- (5) the United States' attorney for Vermont;
- (6) migrant worker and other labor advocacy groups; and
- (7) any other groups or individuals the committee deems appropriate.

(f) The task force shall perform the following duties:

(1) Identify ways to raise public awareness about human trafficking in Vermont communities.

(2) Recommend how the Vermont public, business community, local and state government, health, and education providers can best identify, report, and prevent acts of human trafficking in Vermont.

(3) Identify the services needed by victims of human trafficking and their families, and recommend ways to provide those services.

(g) The task force shall have the assistance and cooperation of all state and local agencies and departments.

(h) On or before November 15, 2010, the task force shall report to the members of the senate and house committees on judiciary, the senate committee on health and welfare, the house committee on human services and to the legislative council its recommendations and legislative proposals, including criminal statutory provisions, if any, relating to its findings.

(i) On or before January 15, 2011, the task force shall report to the general assembly and to the governor its findings and any recommendations.

(j) The task force may meet no more than six times, and shall cease to exist on January 15, 2011.

Sec. 3. LAW ENFORCEMENT ADVISORY BOARD

(a) On or before November 15, 2010, the commissioner of public safety shall report to the law enforcement advisory board on the status of efforts by Vermont law enforcement to respond to issues regarding the crime of human trafficking and what recommendations, if any, should be made to the members of the senate and house committees on judiciary and to the legislative council in order to respond more effectively to those issues.

(b) Prior to making this report, the commissioner shall consult with the following groups:

- (1) a representative of the Vermont association of chiefs of police;
- (2) a representative of the Vermont sheriffs' association;

(3) the attorney general, or his or her designee from the criminal division;

(4) a state's attorney, appointed by the executive director of the department of state's attorneys and sheriffs;

(5) a representative from the Vermont center for crime victim services;

(6) a representative from the network against domestic and sexual violence;

(7) a representative from the coalition of Vermonters against slavery today;

(8) the executive director of the Vermont police academy or his or her designee;

(9) the United States' attorney for Vermont or his or her designee;

(10) representatives from federal law enforcement agencies in Vermont;

(11) the human trafficking task force; and

(12) any other groups or individuals the commissioner deems appropriate.

(c) The law enforcement advisory board shall include its findings and recommendations, based upon the commissioner's report, in its annual report to the general assembly and governor as required pursuant to 24 V.S.A. § 1939(d).

Sec. 4. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect upon passage.

NOTICE CALENDAR

Favorable

Second Reading

H. 771.

An act relating to approval of amendments to the charter of the town of Stowe.

Reported favorably by Senator Doyle for the Committee on Government Operations.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

H. 213.

An act to provide fairness to tenants in cases of contested housing security deposit withholding.

Reported favorably by Senator McCormack for the Committee on Finance.

(Committee Vote: 6-0-1)

Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Campbell for the Committee on Judiciary.

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by adding a new section to be Sec. 2 to read as follows:

Sec. 2. 9 V.S.A. § 4467 is amended to read:

§ 4467. TERMINATION OF TENANCY; NOTICE

(a) Termination for nonpayment of rent. The landlord may terminate a tenancy for nonpayment of rent by providing actual notice to the tenant of the date on which the tenancy will terminate which shall be at least 14 days after the date of the actual notice. The rental agreement shall not terminate if the tenant pays or tenders rent due through the end of the rental period in which payment is made or tendered. Acceptance of partial payment of rent shall not constitute a waiver of the landlord's remedies for nonpayment of rent or an accord and satisfaction for nonpayment of rent.

* * *

(Committee vote: 4-0-1)

(No House amendments.)

H. 759.

An act relating to executive branch fees.

Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Cummings for the Committee on Finance.

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill as follows:

First: In Sec. 2, 20 V.S.A. § 2738, in subsection (a), in subdivision (4), by striking out "and", in subdivision (5), by adding a new and and saving the old period for the end of a new subdivision (6) which is added to read:

(6) fees relating to licensing elevator mechanics and inspectors, and issuing permits and certificates of operation under subchapter 2A of chapter 3 of Title 21.

Second: By striking out Sec. 4 and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 4 to read:

Sec. 4. 20 V.S.A. §§ 2883 and 2884 are amended to read:

§ 2883. ~~INSPECTIONS BY INSURANCE COMPANIES~~ BOILER INSPECTIONS

The commissioner has authority to obtain specific information from ~~boiler insurance companies, boiler inspectors~~ on forms ~~furnished by them~~, which shall first be approved by the commissioner. The commissioner may authorize qualified inspectors ~~in the employ of insurance companies~~ to conduct inspections ~~under his or her control and~~ under such rules as the commissioner may prescribe. If a boiler or pressure vessel is insured, the inspection may be conducted by a qualified inspector who is employed, or contractually authorized, by the insurer. If a boiler or pressure vessel is not insured, the inspection may be conducted by any qualified inspector authorized by the commissioner. In case the inspection is made by such an inspector, no fee shall be charged by the division, except a process fee of ~~\$20.00~~ \$30.00 for issuance of an operating certificate. The fee for a person requesting a three-year authorization to conduct inspections shall be \$150.00. A licensed boiler inspector shall carry liability insurance in an amount determined by the department.

§ 2884. QUALIFICATIONS OF INSPECTORS

All boiler inspectors, ~~employed by the state and insurance companies~~, shall have passed the examination required by the National Board of Boiler and Pressure Vessel Inspectors, and hold annual certification from such board.

Third: By inserting an internal caption and a Sec. 9a to read:

* * * Criminal conviction records * * *

Sec. 9a. 20 V.S.A. § 2056c is amended to read:

§ 2056c. DISSEMINATION OF CRIMINAL CONVICTION RECORDS TO THE PUBLIC

* * *

(c) Criminal conviction records shall be disseminated to the public by the center under the following conditions:

* * *

(10) No person entitled to receive a criminal conviction record pursuant to this section shall require an applicant to obtain, submit personally, or pay for a copy of his or her criminal conviction record, except that this subdivision shall not apply to a local governmental entity with respect to criminal conviction record checks for licenses or vendor permits required by the local governmental entity.

Fourth: By inserting an internal caption and a Sec. 9b to read:

* * * Fingerprinting fees * * *

Sec. 9b. 20 V.S.A. § 2062 is amended to read:

§ 2062. FINGERPRINTING FEES

State, county and municipal law enforcement agencies may charge a fee of not more than ~~\$15.00~~ \$25.00 for providing persons with a set of classifiable fingerprints. No fee shall be charged to retake fingerprints determined by the Vermont criminal information center not to be classifiable. Fees collected by the state of Vermont under this section shall be credited to the fingerprint fee special fund established and managed pursuant to ~~32 V.S.A. chapter 7,~~ subchapter 5 of chapter 7 of Title 32, and shall be available to the department of public safety to offset the costs of providing these services.

Fifth: By striking out Sec. 6 and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 6 to read:

Sec. 6. 26 V.S.A. § 905 is amended to read:

§ 905. APPLICATION; EXAMINATIONS AND FEES

* * *

(d)(1) Three-year electrical license fees shall be:

For a masters license (initial and renewal)	\$120.00 <u>\$150.00</u> ;
For a journeyman's license (initial and renewal)	\$ 90.00 <u>\$115.00</u> ;
For a type-S journeyman's license (initial and renewal) per field	\$ 90.00 <u>\$115.00</u> ;

(2) A fee established under this subsection for a license initially obtained under section 906 of this title shall not be less than the fee charged for the same license by the reciprocal state.

(e) ~~For~~ The fee for a certificate for framing shall be \$ 10.00.

~~(e)~~(f) If a license is allowed to lapse, it may be renewed within one year of its expiration date by the payment of \$25.00 in addition to the renewal fee.

~~(f)~~(g) The fee for replacement of a lost or damaged license shall be \$20.00.

Sixth: In Sec. 9, by adding a subsection (c) to read:

(c) 21 V.S.A. § 157 (elevator safety fund; creation) is repealed.

Seventh: By striking out Sec. 10 and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 10 to read:

Sec. 10. 6 V.S.A. § 324(b) is amended to read:

(b) No person shall distribute in this state a commercial feed that has not been registered pursuant to the provisions of this chapter. Application shall be in a form and manner to be prescribed by rule of the secretary. The application for registration of a commercial feed shall be accompanied by a registration fee of ~~\$70.00~~ \$75.00 per product. The registration fees, along with any surcharges collected under subsection (c) of this section, shall be deposited in the special fund created by subsection 364(e) of this title. Funds deposited in this account shall be restricted to implementing and administering the provisions of this title and any other provisions of the law relating to fertilizer, lime, or seeds. If the secretary so requests, the application for registration shall be accompanied by a label or other printed matter describing the product.

Eighth: In Sec. 18, 9 V.S.A. § 2643, by striking out subsection (b) and inserting in lieu thereof a new subsection (b) to read:

(b) The secretary shall, from time to time, test the accuracy and use of laser scanning and other computer assisted check-out systems in stores. The secretary shall compare the programmed computer price with the item price of any consumer commodity offered by a store. The store shall provide access to the computer as is necessary to allow the secretary to conduct the accuracy test.

~~(b) If, upon review, the programmed price of a commodity exceeds the price printed on or the advertised price of the commodity, the store may be subject to license denial, revocation, suspension or the following administrative penalties: \$15.00 per violation identified in more than two percent but less than four percent of the commodities reviewed, rounded to the nearest whole number, \$20.00 per violation in the next two percent reviewed, \$50.00 per violation in the next two percent and \$100.00 for each additional violation. In no event, however, shall the total amount of penalty for the review exceed \$1,000.00 allowed by 6 V.S.A. § 15 for overcharge errors identified in two percent or more of the commodities reviewed.~~

~~(c) If a subsequent review within 12 months reveals further violations, the total amount of penalty due may be multiplied by the number of violations discovered.~~

Ninth: By striking out Sec. 20 and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 20 to read:

Sec. 20. 8 V.S.A. § 2506 is amended to read:

§ 2506. APPLICATION FOR LICENSE

* * *

(d) A nonrefundable application fee of \$1,000.00 ~~and~~, a license fee of \$500.00 for the applicant, and a license fee of \$25.00 for each authorized delegate location shall accompany an application for a license under this subchapter. The license fee shall be refunded if the application is denied.

* * *

Tenth: By striking out Sec. 21 and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 21 to read:

Sec. 21. 8 V.S.A. § 2509 is amended to read:

§ 2509. RENEWAL OF LICENSE ~~AND~~, ANNUAL REPORT, AND ANNUAL ASSESSMENT

(a) A licensee under this subchapter shall pay an annual license renewal fee of \$500.00, plus an annual renewal fee of \$25.00 for each authorized delegate location, provided that the total renewal fee for all authorized delegate locations shall not exceed \$3,500.00, no later than December 1 for the next succeeding calendar year.

* * *

(c) On or before April 1 of each year, the licensee shall pay the department an annual assessment equal to \$0.0001 per dollar volume of money services activity performed for or sold or issued to Vermont customers for the most recent year ending December 31, which assessment shall not be less than \$100.00 and shall not be greater than \$15,000.00.

(d) If a licensee does not file an annual report on or before April 1, pay its annual assessment on or before April 1, or pay its renewal fee by December 1, or within any extension of time granted by the commissioner, the commissioner shall send the licensee a notice of suspension. The licensee's license shall be suspended 10 calendar days after the commissioner sends the notice of suspension. The licensee has 20 days after its license is suspended in which to file an annual report, pay its annual assessment, or pay the renewal fee, plus \$100.00 for each day after suspension that the commissioner does not receive the annual report, the annual assessment, or the renewal fee. The commissioner for good cause may grant an extension of the due date of the annual report or the renewal date.

~~(d)~~(e) The commissioner may require more frequent reports from any licensee for the purpose of determining the adequacy of the licensee's security.

Eleventh: By striking out Sec. 24 and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 24 to read:

Sec. 24. 8 V.S.A. § 2532a is added to read:

§ 2532a. CHANGE OF AUTHORIZED DELEGATES; CHANGE OF LOCATION

A licensee shall notify the commissioner in writing within 30 days of any change in the list of authorized delegates or locations in this state where the licensee or an authorized delegate of the licensee provides money services, including limited stations and mobile locations. Such notice shall state the name and street address of each authorized delegate or of each location removed or added to the licensee's list. Upon any such change, the licensee shall provide sufficient evidence that it is in compliance with section 2507 of this title. The licensee shall submit with the notice a nonrefundable fee of \$25.00 for each new authorized delegate location and for each change in location. There is no fee to remove authorized delegates or to remove locations.

Twelfth: By inserting an internal caption and Secs. 24a, 24b, 24c, 24d, 24e, 24f, 24g, 24h, and 24i to read:

* * * Simplified licensing process for certain commercial lenders * * *

Sec. 24a. 8 V.S.A. § 2200(1) is amended to read:

(1) "Commercial loan" means any loan or extension of credit that is described in subdivision 46(1), (2), or (4) of Title 9 ~~and that is in excess of \$25,000.00~~. The term does not include a loan or extension of credit ~~for the purpose of farming, as defined in subdivision 6001(22) of Title 10 and does not include a loan or extension of credit for the purpose of financing secured in whole or in part by an owner occupied one- to four-unit dwelling.~~

Sec. 24b. 8 V.S.A. § 2202(d) is added to read:

(d) This section does not apply to a lender making only commercial loans.

Sec. 24c. 8 V.S.A. § 2202a is added to read:

§ 2202a. APPLICATION FOR COMMERCIAL LENDER LICENSE; FEES

(a) Application for a license for a lender making solely commercial loans shall be in writing, under oath, and in the form prescribed by the commissioner, and shall contain the name and address of the residence and the place of business of the applicant and, if the applicant is a partnership or association, of every member thereof, and, if a corporation, of each officer, director, and control person thereof; the county and municipality with street and number, if any, where the business is to be conducted; and such further information as the commissioner may require.

(b) At the time of making application, the applicant shall pay to the commissioner a \$500.00 fee for investigating the application and a \$500.00 initial license fee for a period terminating on the last day of the current calendar year.

(c) In connection with an application for a commercial lender license, the applicant and each officer, director, and control person of the applicant shall furnish to the Nationwide Mortgage Licensing System and Registry (NMLSR) information concerning the applicant's identity and the identity of each of the applicant's officers, directors, and control persons, including:

(1) Fingerprints for submission to the Federal Bureau of Investigation and for any other governmental agency or entity authorized to receive such information for a state, national, and international criminal history background check.

(2) Personal history and experience in a form prescribed by the NMLSR, including the submission of authorization for the NMLSR and the commissioner to obtain information related to any administrative, civil, or criminal findings by any governmental jurisdiction.

(3) Any other information required by the NMLSR or the commissioner.

Sec. 24d. 8 V.S.A. § 2203(f) is added to read:

(f) This section does not apply to a lender making only commercial loans.

Sec. 24e. 8 V.S.A. § 2204(d) is added to read:

(d) This section does not apply to a lender making only commercial loans.

Sec. 24f. 8 V.S.A. § 2204c is added to read:

§ 2204c. APPROVAL OF APPLICATION; ISSUANCE OF COMMERCIAL LENDER LICENSE

(a) Upon the filing of the application and payment of the required fees, the commissioner shall issue and deliver a commercial lender license to the applicant upon findings by the commissioner as follows:

(1) That the experience, character, and general fitness of the applicant are such as to command the confidence of the community and to warrant belief that the business will be operated honestly, fairly, and efficiently within the purposes of this chapter. If the applicant is a partnership or association, such findings are required with respect to each partner, member, and control person. If the applicant is a corporation, such findings are required with respect to each officer, director, and control person.

(2) That the applicant and each officer, director, and control person of the applicant has never had a lender license, mortgage broker license, mortgage

loan originator license, or similar license revoked in any governmental jurisdiction, except that a subsequent formal vacation of such revocation shall not be deemed a revocation.

(3) That the applicant and each officer, director, and control person of the applicant has not been convicted of or pled guilty or nolo contendere to a felony in a domestic, foreign, or military court:

(A) During the seven-year period preceding the date of the application for licensing, except a conviction for driving under the influence or a similarly titled offense in this state or in any other jurisdiction;

(B) At any time preceding such date of application, if such felony involved an act of fraud, dishonesty, or a breach of trust, or money laundering; or

(C) Provided that any pardon of a conviction shall not be a conviction for purposes of this subsection.

(b) If the commissioner does not find as set forth in subsection (a) of this section, the commissioner shall not issue a license. Within 60 days of filing of the completed application, the commissioner shall notify the applicant of the denial, stating the reason or reasons therefor. If after the allowable period, no request for reconsideration under subsection 2205(a) of this title is received from the applicant, the commissioner shall return to the applicant the sum paid by the applicant as a license fee, retaining the investigation fee to cover the costs of investigating the application.

(c) If the commissioner makes findings as set forth in subsection (a) of this section, he or she shall issue the license within 60 days of filing the completed application. Provided the licensee annually renews the license, the license shall be in full force and effect until surrendered by the licensee or until revocation, suspension, termination, or refusal to renew by the commissioner.

Sec. 24g. 8 V.S.A. § 2209(a)(6) is added to read:

(6) For the renewal of a lender's license for a lender making only commercial loans, \$500.00.

Sec. 24h. 8 V.S.A. § 2224(b) is amended to read:

(b) Annually, within 90 days of the end of its fiscal year, each licensed lender, mortgage broker, and sales finance company shall file financial statements with the commissioner in a form and substance satisfactory to the commissioner, which financial statements must include a balance sheet and income statement. This subsection does not apply to a lender making only commercial loans.

Sec. 24i. 9 V.S.A. § 46 is amended to read:

§ 46. EXCEPTIONS

Section 43 of this title relating to deposit requirements and section 45 of this title relating to prepayment penalties shall not apply and the parties may contract for a rate of interest in excess of the rate provided in section 41a of this title in the case of:

* * *

(2) obligations incurred by any person, partnership, association or other entity to finance in whole or in part income-producing business or activity, but not including obligations incurred to finance family dwellings of ~~two~~ four units or less when used as a residence by the borrower or to finance real estate which is devoted to agricultural purposes as part of an operating farming unit when used as a residence by the borrower; or

* * *

Thirteenth: By inserting an internal caption and a Sec. 29a to read:

* * * Moose hunting permit * * *

Sec. 29a. 10 V.S.A. § 4254 is amended to read:

§ 4254. FISHING AND HUNTING LICENSES; ELIGIBILITY, DESIGN, DISTRIBUTION, SALE, AND ISSUE

* * *

(i)(1) If the board establishes a moose hunting season, up to five moose permits shall be set aside to be auctioned. The board shall adopt rules necessary for the department to establish, implement, and run the auction process. Proceeds from the auction shall be deposited in the fish and wildlife fund and used for conservation education programs run by the department. Successful bidders must have a Vermont hunting or combination license in order to purchase a moose permit. Beginning with the 2006 hunting season, the five moose permits set aside for auction shall be in addition to the number of annual moose permits authorized by the board.

* * *

(3) If the board establishes a moose hunting season, there shall be established a program to set aside three moose permits for children with life-threatening illnesses. The department of fish and wildlife shall adopt a procedure to implement the set-aside program for children with life-threatening illnesses.

Fourteenth: In Sec. 30, 3 V.S.A. § 2822(j), in subdivision (2)(B)(i), by striking out the figure “\$210,000.00” and inserting in lieu thereof the figure \$60,000.00

Fifteenth: In Sec. 30, 3 V.S.A. § 2822(j), by adding an ellipsis after subdivision (7)(F)

Sixteenth: In Sec. 30, 3 V.S.A. § 2822(j), by inserting subdivision (26) and amending it to read:

(26) For individual conditional use determinations, for individual wetland permits, for general conditional use determinations issued under 10 V.S.A. § 1272, or for wetland authorizations issued under a general permit, an administrative processing fee assessed under subdivision (2) of this subsection (j) and an application fee of:

(A) ~~\$0.07~~ \$0.14 per square foot of proposed impact to Class I or II wetlands;

(B) ~~\$0.05~~ \$0.10 per square foot of proposed impact to Class I or II wetland buffers;

(C) maximum fee, for the conversion of Class II wetlands or wetland buffers to cropland use, \$200.00 per application. For purposes of this subdivision, “cropland” means land that is used for the production of agricultural crops, including row crops, fibrous plants, pasture, fruit-bearing bushes, trees or vines and the production of Christmas trees;

(D) minimum fee, \$50.00 per application.

* * *

Seventeenth: In Sec. 30, 3 V.S.A. § 2322(j), by adding subdivisions (29) and (30) to read:

(29) For salvage yards permitted under subchapter 10 of chapter 61 of Title 24:

- | | |
|--|---------------------------------|
| <u>(A) facilities that crush or shred junk motor vehicles.</u> | <u>\$2,000.00 per facility.</u> |
| <u>(B) facilities that accept or dismantle junk motor vehicles.</u> | <u>\$1,000.00 per facility.</u> |
| <u>(C) facilities that manage junk on site excluding junk motor vehicles.</u> | <u>\$350.00 per facility.</u> |
| <u>(D) facilities, the primary activity of which is handling total-loss vehicles from insurance companies.</u> | <u>\$300.00 per facility.</u> |

(30) For beverage redemption centers certified under chapter 53 of Title 10, an annual fee of \$100.00 per certified redemption center.

* * *

Eighteenth: In Sec. 30, 3 V.S.A. § 2822(1), in subdivision (2), by striking the (A) designation, the word “or” and subdivision (B) in its entirety

Nineteenth: By striking out Sec. 31 in its entirety

Twentieth: In Sec. 33, by adding a new subsection (c) to read:

(c) 24 V.S.A. § 2263 (annual salvage yard licensing fee) is repealed.

Twenty-first: In Sec. 35, 32 V.S.A. § 605, in subsection (b), by striking out subdivision (1) and inserting in lieu thereof a new subdivision (1) to read:

(1) A report covering all fees in existence on the prior July 1 within the areas of government identified by the department of finance and management accounting system as “general government,” “labor,” “general education,” “development and community affairs” and “transportation” shall be submitted ~~by October 1, 1996 and every three years thereafter~~ on by the third Tuesday of the legislative session beginning with 2000 beginning in 2011 and every three years thereafter.

Twenty second: By striking Sec. 35a in its entirety

Twenty third: By inserting an internal caption and a Sec. 34a to read:

* * * Probate fees * * *

Sec. 34a. 32 V.S.A. § 1434 is amended to read:

§ 1434. PROBATE COURTS

(a) The following entry fees shall be paid to the probate court for the benefit of the state, except for subdivision (17) of this subsection which shall be for the benefit of the county in which the fee was collected:

* * *

(14) Guardianships for minors	\$35.00 <u>\$85.00</u>
(15) Guardianships for adults	\$50.00 <u>\$100.00</u>
(16) Petitions for change of name	\$75.00 <u>\$125.00</u>

* * *

<u>(23) Petitions for partial decree</u>	<u>\$100.00</u>
<u>(24) Petitions for license to sell real estate</u>	<u>\$50.00</u>

* * *

And by renumbering the remaining sections to be numerically correct.

(Committee vote: 7-0-0)

(For House amendments, see House Journal for February 11, 2010, page 190; February 12, 2010, page 195.)

House Proposal of Amendment

S. 264

An act relating to stop and hauling charges.

The House proposes to the Senate to amend the bill by striking Sec. 5 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 5. EFFECTIVE DATE

This bill shall take effect upon passage, except that Sec. 2. (amendment to 6 V.S.A. § 2676, mandating that cost of hauling to be paid by buyer) shall take effect when New York and Pennsylvania require, by legislative or administrative enactment of statewide applicability and enforcement, that dairy hauling costs be paid by the purchaser of cows' milk rather than the producer of the milk.

ORDERED TO LIE

S. 99.

An act relating to amending the Act 250 criteria relating to traffic, scattered development, and rural growth areas.

S. 110.

An act relating to sheltering livestock.

S. 226.

An act relating to medical marijuana dispensaries.

H. 331.

An act relating to technical changes to the records management authority of the Vermont State Archives and Records Administration.

CONFIRMATIONS

The following appointments will be considered by the Senate, as a group, under suspension of the Rules, as moved by the President *pro tempore*, for confirmation together and without debate, by consent thereby given by the Senate. However, upon request of any senator, any appointment may be singled out and acted upon separately by the Senate, with consideration given to the report of the Committee to which the appointment was referred, and with full debate; and further, all appointments for the positions of Secretaries of

Agencies, Commissioners of Departments, Judges, Magistrates, and members of the Public Service Board shall be fully and separately acted upon.

Jonathan Wood of Cambridge - Secretary of the Agency of Natural Resources - By Senator Lyons for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. (3/10/10)

Jonathan Wood of Cambridge - Secretary of the Agency of Natural Resources - By Senator Lyons for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. (3/10/10)

Justin Johnson of Barre - Commissioner of the Department of Environmental Conservation - By Senator Lyons for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. (3/10/10)

Wayne Allen Laroche of Franklin - Commissioner of the Department of Fish & Wildlife - By Senator Lyons for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. (3/10/10)

Peter F. Young, Jr. of Northfield - Chair of the Natural Resources Board - By Senator Lyons for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. (3/10/10)

Jason Gibbs of Duxbury - Commissioner of the Department of Forests, Parks & Recreation - By Senator Lyons for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. (3/10/10)

Jason Gibbs of Duxbury – Commissioner of the Department of Forests, Parks & Recreation – By Senator Lyons for the Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. (3/10/10)

Richard A. Westman of Cambridge – Commissioner of the Department of Taxes – By Senator MacDonald for the Committee on Finance. (3/16/10)

Bruce Hyde of Granville – Commissioner of the Department of Tourism & Marketing – By Sen. Ashe for the Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs. (3/24/10)

Kevin Dorn of Essex Junction – Secretary of the Agency of Commerce & Community Development – By Sen. Illuzzi for the Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs. (3/24/10)

Tayt Brooks of St. Albans – Commissioner of the Department of Economic, Housing and Community Affairs – By Sen. Miller for the Committee on Economic Development, Housing and General Affairs. (3/24/10)